UNITED

NATIONS C RC

Convention on the Distr.
. . CGENERAL
Rights of the Child

CRC/ ¢/ SR 327
3 Cctober 1996

Oiginal: ENGISH

COW TTEE ON THE RI GHTS OF THE CHI LD
Thirteenth session
SUMMVARY RECORD OF THE 327t h MEETI NG

Held at the Pal ais des Nations, CGeneva,
on Tuesday, 1 Cctober 1996, at 10 a.m

Chai rperson: Ms. BELEMBAOGO

CONTENTS
CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS OF STATES PARTI ES (conti nued)

Initial report of Uruguay (continued)

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be subnitted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a menorandum and al so i ncorporated in a copy of the
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this docunent to
the Oficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Palais des Nations, Ceneva.

Any corrections to the records of the neetings of the Cormittee at this

session will be consolidated in a single corrigendum to be issued shortly
after the end of the session.

GE. 96- 18421 (E)



CRC/ ¢/ SR 327
page 2
The neeting was called to order at 10.05 a.m

CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS OF STATES PARTI ES (agenda item 4) (continued)

Initial report of Uruguay (CRC ¢/ 3/Add.37; HRI/CORE/ 1/ Add. 9; CRC @ URU. 1)
(conti nued)

1. At the invitation of the Chairperson, M. Bonasso, Ms. |zquierdo,
Ms. Fernandez and Ms. Rivero (Urugua resuned their places at the Committee
table.

2. M. BONASSO (Uruguay), replying to questions asked by the nenbers of the
Conmittee the previous day, said that one of the Committee's concerns had been
to know whet her any neasures had been taken to provide education for children
in conflict with the | aw who had been detained in institutions. He agreed
with Ms. Santos Pais that the State had a responsibility to ensure that such
chil dren, whose |evel of educational achievenent was often | ow, were given as
much hel p as possible. There was no doubt that education was nmuch nore

ef fective than deprivation of liberty in reform ng young people. Under a |aw
adopted the previous year, technical institutes were now responsible for
providing study or training courses for juvenile offenders; the role of the
Nati onal Mnors' Institute (INAME) was to decide on the type of education or
training best suited to the abilities of each particular child. Under an
agreenment with | NAME, several non-governnental organizations, including
Service, Peace and Justice in Latin America (SERPAJ) and Children's Forum now
provi ded courses for such young people and al so hel ped themfind work after
their rel ease

3. The policy of INAME and of the other bodi es concerned was that everything
shoul d be as open and transparent as possible. Several nore training

wor kshops were planned, as well as courses in the use of conputer technol ogy.
One of the training establishnments was a sem -open one, in which the inmates
went out to work each day and returned in the evening, thus enabling themto
become gradually accustonmed to being at liberty. 1In addition, a progranme was
now under way to provide alternatives to confinenment for children in conflict
with the [ aw under which they would remain free, but under supervision. The
pur pose of that approach was to inprove rehabilitation and to avoid
institutionalization as far as possible.

4, Adoption was regul ated by the Adoption Institute, which was staffed by
qualified professionals. |NAME had recommended that the Institute should be
given powers at the national |level to decide on the handing over of children
for adoption and that the courts should no | onger have sole responsibility in
the matter; he hoped that that reconmendati on woul d be approved. [|INAME s aim
was not to seek a child for the parents, but, rather, parents for the child.
Wiile in principle the Institute did not favour breaking the link with the

bi ol ogi cal parents, it encouraged adoption if that seemed to be in the child's
best interests.

5. Ref erence had al so been nade to the question of disappeared children:
some progress had been made in that respect. Fromthe noral standpoint, there
could be no doubt that parents had every right to expect that action would be
taken and he had no wish to mnimze the inportance of the tragedies that had



CRC/ C/ SR 327
page 3

occurred, but the fact was that nost di sappearances had taken pl ace outside
Uruguay. The CGovernnent had no intention of closing the file on the subject
and di scussions were continuing, although there was a limt to what could be
done now that so nuch tinme had el apsed.

6. Ms. 1ZQUI ERDO (Uruguay) confirned that the majority of forced

di sappearances of children during the dictatorship in Uuguay from 1973 to
1984 had not occurred in Uruguayan territory. However, the fact that the
country was a close nei ghbour of Brazil and Argentina, where they had
occurred, nmeant that those in power in Uuguay at that tine had to sonme extent
been involved. It had been asked what had been done to hel p NGGCs,
particularly in Argentina, to look for those children. The previous year, a
di sappeared Uruguayan child had been | ocated, who had been born while his
parents had been in prison; both parents had subsequently di sappeared. The
Mnistry of External Relations, as well as the Uruguayan Enbassy in the
country concerned, had played an active part in the case and had provided the
child with all the support and protection possible.

7. M. BONASSO (Uruguay), replying to the question on street children, said
that | NAME had two progranmes to assist such children, one in Mntevideo and
one in an outlying suburb, run jointly with an NGO and with the cooperation of
UNI CEF. The suburb had been chosen for one of the programes in order to
avoid breaking links with the children's famlies and disrupting their
education, since the problemof street children was closely linked to the
probl em of school drop-outs. The programme was thus designed to operate not
only in the centre of the city, where street children were usually found, but
also in the outlying areas from which they had originally cone.

8. | NAVE had had a nunber of requests fromdifferent parts of the country
for help with the education and training of such children. Sone two years
previously, a nunber of training workshops had been set up in the main bus
term nal in Montevideo designed to help the street children found near the
term nal or passing through it. Wth financial support from UNI CEF, noreover,
I NAME had just produced a survey of street children in Mntevideo on which

ei ght nenbers of its staff had worked for three nonths. | NAME intended to
continue work on that project with a viewto the eventual setting up of a
centre which woul d cooperate with NGOs to provide a 24-hour care service

9. Ms. 1ZQU ERDO (Uruguay) said that torture was not specifically defined
as a crime in Uuguayan |law, although the country had ratified the Convention
agai nst Torture, which had consequently becone part of donestic |law. However,
abuses of authority by police or other officials vis-a-vis persons held in
custody before trial, or in prison after sentencing, were offences under the
Penal Code.

10. Wth regard to the ill-treatnment of minors, a |aw had recently been
adopted, with the support of virtually all political parties in Parlianent,
nmaki ng domestic violence a crine. One of the ains of the |law was to protect
children against ill-treatnment by their famlies, their |egal guardians or
persons living with them The penalties for that crine were severe, ranging
from6 to 24 nmonths' inprisonment, the term being increased by one-third when
the victi mwas under 16 years of age, suffered from physical or psychol ogi ca
handi caps, was a blood relation or shared the sane househol d.



CRC/ C/ SR. 327
page 4

11. M. BONASSO (Uruguay), referring to M. Hanmarberg's comment on the role
pl ayed by the State in respect of the mass nedia, said that, in Uruguay, the
nmedi a were seen as a val uable way of furthering national integration and
reinforcing cultural identity by hel pi ng popul ation groups in the nore renote
regions to becone famliar with the Spani sh | anguage. The CGovernnent al so had
a mandate to control and nonitor the mass nedia and tel evision progranmes were
timed as far as possible to protect mnors fromundesirable view ng, but it
was difficult to enforce control in practice. A conmi ssion conposed of

academ cs, CGovernnent officials and representatives of the nedia had been set
up and was trying to introduce some kind of system of self-regulation, under
whi ch the anobunt of sex and viol ence in progranmes woul d be reduced.

12. On the problem of alcohol, the effect of advertising had been that
consunpti on by young people had increased considerably, and that was a matter
of concern. The Governnent had | aunched publicity camnpaigns ai ned at young
peopl e whi ch were designed to change attitudes rather than to condem or

i mpose controls fromabove. W rk on the problemwas continuing in an effort
to find the nost effective type of action

13. Ms. 1ZQUI ERDO (Uruguay) said that the | egal provision governing the
guestion of detention, nanely, Decree Law No. 680, was a relic fromthe period
of dictatorship and a nunber of international human rights bodi es had drawn
attention to the contradictions between it and international instruments on

t he subject and even with Uruguay's own Constitution. At present, however, it
was not applied in practice. A revised version of the Penal Code was now
under study in Parlianent, which she hoped woul d soon be approved, and, once
that Code had entered into force, Decree Law No. 680 woul d be superseded.
However, it had to be recognized that, formally, it was still in force.

14. M. BONASSO (Uruguay) stressed that, although | NAME was responsible for
taking in young of fenders who had been sentenced, it was the courts, not the
police, which had the authority to deci de what policy should be followed in
dealing with them The judge would normally order that, whenever possible, a
child should be returned to his or her famly. In dealing with young

of fenders, INAME tried to work together with fanilies to see if an alternative
solution could be found that woul d not involve institutionalization.

15. One nenber of the Conmittee had asked why Uruguay had set the age of
access to enployment for children at 14 instead of 15. The Governnent in fact
fully accepted that its legislation should be brought into line with the
Convention in that respect and efforts were now being made to renedy the
situation. 1In the same way, U uguay recogni zed that the child s right to
privacy should be protected where exposure to the nmedi a was concer ned.

Al t hough there was no press censorship in the country, the draft Children's
Code contai ned provisions on the subject and everything possible woul d be done
to ensure that they were conplied with

16. Ms. KARP, welconming the information relating to a study of street

chil dren, asked whether any link had been found between fanily viol ence and
children leaving famlies to live on the streets. What conclusions had been
reached with regard to sending such children back to their famlies? Had the



CRC/ C/ SR 327
page 5

study given any attention to child prostitution or to neasuring the scope of
that problen? Ws any consideration being given to the special treatnent
needs of child prostitutes?

17. Since the Conmittee had a keen interest in how |l egislation was applied in
practice, she again asked what penalties were applied in the case of
journalists who infringed the privacy of children. Wre such cases comopn?

18. At what age were children considered conpetent to give evi dence agai nst
abusi ve parents? Wre any services avail able, such as special police or
psychol ogi cal units, to help children tell their stories? WAs evidence

provi ded by children acceptable in court? What problenms were encountered in
assessing the reliability of such evidence? WAs corroboration of evidence
provided by a child mandatory to secure a conviction?

19. In any decision on abortion, was age a deciding factor? WAs consent
requi red for abortion?

20. She woul d wel cone further information on the nediation process applied in
cases of family violence. It was apparently accepted that penal sanctions
were not the only neans of tackling the problem \What considerati on was given
to the child' s views in the nmediation process and in deci sions on how the
perpetrator should be treated?

21. M. HAMVARBERG said that, although the school enrolnment rate in U uguay
was high and the literacy rate inpressive, sone indicators such as a high rate
of repetition and the exanination failure rate gave cause for concern, since
they were a sign of problens with equity and the quality of education. A
review of the quality of curricula might be indicated. Another factor
affecting the quality of education was the status of teachers. Wen the
teachi ng profession was not an attractive one and teachers had to find
additional work to nmaintain a reasonable standard of |iving, educationa
standards tended to suffer, especially in rural schools or schools attended by
children fromless well-off families. Low pay and |ow status in the teaching
prof ession generally led to authoritarian attitudes in schools, a |ack of
creativity in approaches to teaching and | earning and participation by pupils.
Had Uruguay any plans to renmedy the situation?

22. Ms. SARDENBERG said that, although child di sappearances had not been a
probl em since the restoration of denocracy, she continued to be concerned
about the preservation and recovery of identity. How many cases were stil
pendi ng? Was any official body |ooking into the matter?

23. On the adoption issue, she understood that | NAME was aut horized to dea
with adoption in addition to its work with abandoned children. Wat was being
done to resolve the conflict between these two duties?

24, The informati on that Decree Law No. 680 was no | onger being applied was
wel cone. However, the fact that it was still on the statute book was
di squi eti ng; Uruguay shoul d consider repealing that |egislation



CRC/ C/ SR 327
page 6

25. Had Uruguay taken any steps to inplenent the Plan of Action adopted by
the World Sunmit for Children? Wat was the CGovernnent's strategy with regard
to the global goals for the m d-decade?

26. The list of issues contained a question relating to the education of
parents. Had parents in Uruguay any access to advice or support fromthe
State in order to ensure the harnoni ous devel opnent of children? The

del egation had confined its response to the legislative aspects of the issue,
but she would also Iike to know what social progranmes were available to
provide financial or other assistance to families in difficulty. Wat was the
current situation with regard to child-care centres? darification of the
ainms and activities of the Children's Comm ssariat woul d be appreci at ed.

27. Al t hough access to education and the literacy rate were admrable in
Uruguay, the position of women in society did not reflect those educationa
advantages. Wre the education offered to girls and the educati onal nethods
applied to them affected by discrimnatory attitudes? How did the Children's
Code currently under discussion deal with the question of gender?

28. The decline in infant nortality to a low of 18.7 in 1992 was to be
appl auded. However, the recent rise of that statistic to 18.9 was worryi ng.
VWhat was the expl anation and had the Government any noves in mind to counter
the trend?

29. Ms. EUFEM O said that, in Uruguayan families nmoving fromrural districts
to poor urban areas, it had been found that the rearing of children was al nost
exclusively the nother's responsibility. She wondered whether attitudes of
mal e domi nance ("nachisno"), in which child care was considered a threat to
the mal e ego, were responsible for that situation. Wre any efforts being
made in the schools to alter such attitudes anong boys and girls, particularly
at the ages when socialization was being initiated? |In the case of single

not hers who changed partners frequently, or families with fathers worki ng away
from home or neglectful of or violent with their children, what efforts were
bei ng nmade by the Governnent to ensure that all children enjoyed the right to
a famly environment?

30. The Uruguayan response to question 16 of the list of issues had been to
refer the Coomittee to a provision of the Civil Code. Wat percentage of
parents were in fact aware of the contents of the Cvil Code? Ws any attenpt
made to nmake such information available to themin accessible terms? Did the
school curriculumprovide for any training to prepare children for responsible
par ent hood when they becanme adults? Was any provision nade in the curricul um
to foster the devel opment of children along the lines laid down in article 29
of the Convention or to bring about such changes in attitude through

educati on?

31. She asked whether there was any cause in addition to teenage pregnancies
for the nunber of single nothers. Was the State considering any action

t hrough the nmass nedia, education or pre-nmarriage counselling to encourage a
reduction in the nunber of single nothers and teach parenting skills? 1In the
case of the many famlies with no adult male in the household, were any
programes planned to enlist male relatives, friends or teachers to provide a
framework of social support for the children of such famlies?



CRC/ C/ SR 327
page 7

32. According to a UNESCO report, teenage pregnancies led girls to drop out
of school, thus limting their opportunity to | earn about parenting at school
Were any efforts being nmade to encourage pregnant teenagers to return to
school or was the social stigma involved in teenage pregnhancy too strong to
prevent that?

33. M. MOVBESHORA said that, according to the report, current health
policies had led to a reduction in Governnent intervention. Wat proportion
of the current national budget was allocated to health, education and defence?
Had any areas in particular suffered fromthe policy change? Wy was priority
in the new strategy for partnership being given to wonen and children in urban
areas? Did such areas have greater access to services? Wat services were
provided for dealing with teenage or unwanted pregnanci es? WAs any

counsel ling, social or nutritional support available in such cases? What

fam |y planning progranmes were in place in Uuguay and how accessi bl e were
they to the general public? How nmany wonen had their babies in hospital or
other health facilities? Wre neonatal H V infections a problemin Uruguay?
Were there enough trained personnel and facilities in place in Uruguay to
provide care for all disabled children and ensure thema better life?

34. Ms. SANTOS PAIS said that the value of the Convention lay largely inits
application in donestic legislation. It was therefore essential that Decree
Law No. 680, which was conpletely contrary to the spirit of the Convention
shoul d be repeal ed.

35. She wel coned the fact that Uruguay was a party to the Convention agai nst
Torture. However, torture nmust also be characterized as a crine in donestic
crimnal |aw and nade subject to crinminal sanctions if the nmessage was to be
conveyed to officials and others that the practice was abhorrent. In the case
of domestic violence, crimnal |aw should contain provisions to renove
children fromparental authority where necessary. |In addition to the nessage
conveyed by the law, the spirit of the Convention nust be inculcated in

soci ety through education, dialogue, negotiation and reconciliation. It
shoul d becone the general view that violence was not acceptabl e under any

ci rcumnst ances.

36. Wth reference to adoption, it was understood that sone children would be
unabl e to know who their natural parents were follow ng adoption, as in the
case of parents who were mnors. It was hoped that the policy relating to
surnames for children born out of wedl ock could be changed, as it inplied a
stignma for the child.

37. Uruguay appeared to have no | egislation governing international adoption
Al though it intended to ratify the 1993 Hague Convention, it had not yet done
so. \What problens were being encountered as a result of that |egal vacuunf
What safeguards were in place to ensure that adoption was the best option for
the child? Ws any data avail able on the subsequent fate of children handed
over to foreign couples? The report nmade no nmention of illegal trafficking in
children. Was that to be taken to nean that such trafficking did not occur in
Ur uguay?

38. Children appeared to be a growing mnority in Uuguay. There appeared to
be no bodi es speaking on their behalf. Attention seened to be given to them



CRC/ C/ SR 327
page 8

only when they becane a problemor a threat. There was a need for a better
bal ance in attitudes towards children, who made a valuable contribution to
soci ety.

39. The reply to question 17 of the list of issues indicated a concern to
avoid the institutionalization of children. However, many children were in
institutions because their parents had no neans of providing for their needs
and so | acked the psychol ogi cal supports to devel opnent provided by the famly
environnent. Geater efforts needed to be nade to enable children to renmain
with their famlies. She welconmed the information provided on the existence
of a network of carers in Uruguay, but asked how that system was nonitored.

40. Ms. KARP, referring to paragraph 210 of the report, asked whether the
relative inbalance in the proportions of wonen attending State and private
health centres was evidence of an increasing trend towards privatization in
the health field. Mention had been nmade of the nany progranmes devoted to
children in special need. To what extent did existing services cover the
needs of such children? Wre there long waiting lists for admission to
institutions owing to the lack of places as a result of insufficient budget
al l ocations? The principal causes of death in the 15 to 20 year-old age group
were apparently traffic accidents and suicide. Wat nental health services
exi sted for children? Was there any |legislation regulating adni ssion of
children to nental care facilities? Did the child have any say in such

admi ssion in view of the stigm attached to nental illness? Wre there any
pl ans to enable nore children to receive treatnment for drug abuse?

41. M ss MASON said that the age for consent to sexual intercourse appeared
to be 14, although the I egal age for marriage was 12 for girls and 14 for
boys. Were proceedings often instituted agai nst persons who engaged i n sexua
intercourse with mnors? Stressing the inportance of teacher status in

i mproving the quality of education, she asked what efforts were being made to
i mprove teacher training and what educational qualifications teachers had,
especially in rural areas. Wat was the nale to fenmale rati o anong teachers
and what was the teacher to pupil ratio? Did parents play any part in the
educational system for exanple, through parent/teacher associations?

42. Ms. BADRAN said she had understood that one of the main areas of concern
in UNICEF' s cooperation with Uruguay was famly life. She w shed to know

whet her such cooperation focused on the prevention of the breakdown of famly
life or took a remedi al approach to the problem and whet her any studi es had
been conducted to explain the deterioration of the famly in Uruguay.

43. Despite U uguay's good health indicators, there were wide disparities in
the I evel of health care available, even in the capital. For exanple, the
indicators for infant nortality in Mntevideo varied between 4 per thousand
and 74 per thousand. She asked whether priority consideration had been given
to bridging the gap between the privileged and underprivil eged sectors of the
popul ati on.

44, The statistics on environmental health, particularly with regard to
sanitation, were surprising because the figures suggested that fewer people in
urban areas had adequate sanitation than people in rural areas. The



CRC/ C/ SR 327
page 9

statistics seened questionable in view of the fact that far nore peopl e had
access to safe water supplies in cities than in the rural part of the country.

45, G ven the high drop-out rate at the prinmary school |evel, she wondered
whet her vocational training institutions existed and whet her preparatory
education for such training had been introduced at the primary |evel.
Referring to discrimnation agai nst wonen, she asked whether the schoo
curriculumhad been reviewed in order to elininate gender bias and pronote
gender equality.

46. M. KOOSOV said that the Conmittee's task in fornulating its concl uding
observations and recomendati ons to the CGovernnent of Uruguay woul d be
difficult because information from sources other than the CGovernnent had not
given as good an inpression of conditions in Uuguay as the one the del egation
had tried to create.

47. Attitudes towards street children were gradually changi ng, but, despite
t he invol venent of non-governnmental organi zations in progranmes intended for
such children, the problemrenai ned serious. He asked whether the public and
the police treated those children as potential offenders.

48. He al so wished to know to what extent the nass nedia violated the privacy
of juvenile offenders through excessive nedi a coverage and asked how rmuch
access young people had to information on their rights through the print and

el ectroni ¢ nedi a.

49, Ms. 1ZQUI ERDO (Uruguay) said that, although she did not know the exact
nunber of children who had been victins of forced di sappearances, she was sure
it was not nore than 15, 10 of whom had been found since the end of the

di ctatorship and the restorati on of denocracy.

50. M. BONASSO (Uruguay) said that nmany children had been handed over by the
judiciary to the National Mnors' Institute (I NAME) for adoption. | NAME was

i nvol ved in the adoption process at various |evels and had naintai ned that

i nvol venent because it was equipped to carry out all the necessary studies and
tests before adopti on took place.

51. Replying to the comment that children were perceived as threats to
adults, he said that it was not surprising that such feelings existed in a
country havi ng Uruguay's denographi c conposition. |NAVE was working on
changi ng attitudes anong adults to encourage themto val ue young persons as
scarce human resources, and to create a |link between the generations.

52. Ms. FERNANDEZ (Uruguay) said that, since the preparation of the Nationa
Action Plan in 1992, the Governnent had been involved in a nunber of
activities coordinated by the Social Policies Division of the Ofice of

Pl anni ng and Budget. The areas covered by the Plan were health, education,
nutrition, children in particularly difficult circunmstances, and womren.
Assessments of indicators had been carried out annually and an overal

eval uation of the Plan had been conducted in 1995. 1In general, the md-term
obj ectives had been achieved and, in sone cases, the goals for the year 2000



CRC/ C/ SR 327
page 10

had al ready been reached. The CGovernnent was planning to revise and update
the Plan and to introduce new goals directly related to the Convention on the
Ri ghts of the Child.

53. M. BONASSO (Uruguay) said that the Commi ssion on Children, for which the
Mnistry of the Interior was responsible, had so far operated only in
Mont evi deo. The Mnistry would, however, work with police headquarters

t hroughout the country to provide specialized services to ensure that cases

i nvol ving m nors were handl ed by persons experienced in dealing with
children's probl ens.

54, Ms. 1ZQU ERDO (Uruguay) said that integrated educational reformwas
under way to inprove the standard of education and incorporate the el ements of
nodern teaching theory into the education system The reformwas a difficult
task which had nmet with some opposition but, once the inplenentation of the
reform pl an had begun, students, teachers and parents had asked to be included
in the discussions with the Government.

55. Teachers hel d regul ar assenblies to assess the education systemand to
present their concerns to the authorities and there were parents' associations
that interacted with school boards. The teaching profession required training
at the tertiary level and it was inpossible for a person to teach in private
or public schools in Uuguay without full certification by the authorities.

56. M. BONASSO (Uruguay) said that the Governnent was aware of its
shortcomi ngs, but willing to act on the recomendati ons made by the Conmittee.
For exanple, it had intensified efforts to lower the infant nortality rate,
whi ch had actually declined by 10 points between 1985 and 1990, and it was
conmitted to fulfilling its obligation to inprove the situation in the health
and other sectors through the adoption of appropriate neasures.

57. The health system consi sted of public and private conponents. Public
health services were free of charge and intended primarily for the | owincome
sectors of the population. The quality of such health services and of private
collectivized nedical care was of a particularly high standard. 1t was
nevert hel ess true that the quality of the data collected in urban and rura
areas was not al ways consistent, and that accounted for discrepancies in
heal t h i ndi cat ors.

58. The CGovernnent was making every effort to eliminate "pachisn” in
Uruguayan society, particularly in rural areas. It was unfortunately the case
t hat wonen thensel ves perpetuated chauvinistic attitudes, but there was hope
that the trend could be reversed.

59. The probl em of teenage pregnhancy required action in the health and
education sectors, as well as action by INAME and the Institute for the Famly
and Wonen. I n that connection, the Uruguayan Governnent was convi nced of the
i mportance of a primary health care strategy and supported the work bei ng done
by the Pan Anmerican Health Organi zation, the Wrld Health O ganization and

UNI CEF. Sexual conduct was an issue which needed to be dealt with
systematically in school curricula. In reply to Ms. Eufem o's question on
the stigma attached to teenage pregnancy, he said that sone neasures had been



CRC/ ¢/ SR. 327
page 11

adopt ed, but new approaches to the problem were needed. |NAVE had set up sone
hones and shelters where pregnant girls could continue their education, but
such services were not yet wdely avail able.

60. Ms. 1ZQU ERDO (Uruguay) said that one of the major reforns under way in
the area of education related to teachers' salaries. Inprovenents in that
regard were expected to have a direct inpact on the quality of education,
particularly in poorer areas where schools served as reference points not only
for learning, but also for recreation, nutrition and fam |y gui dance.

61. As far as budgetary allocations for health were concerned, Uruguay
had 12 priority health programmes that had already attracted | arge investnents
fromthe Government and frominternational donors.

62. Ni nety per cent of births took place in public or private hospitals and
clinics and the nunber of deliveries that took place at honme, wi thout nedica
supervi sion, had thus declined.

63. M. BONASSO (Uruguay) said that Uruguay had not had a children's hospita
until a few nonths previously, when two hospitals had been appointed to
provide care specifically for children in the capital and in the provinces,
respectively.

64. Breast -feedi ng was unfortunately not prevalent in Uruguay and UNI CEF had
| aunched a pronotional canpaign to deal with that issue. Although the use of
m |k formula was not encouraged in hospitals, one of the reasons that

breast -feedi ng was not the usual practice was that wonen were returning to
work within nonths of giving birth and were therefore substituting mlk
formula for breast mlk. It was hoped that U uguay woul d make strides in its
breast - f eedi ng canpai gn by the year 2000.

65. A study on the problemof child prostitution had been carried out in
cooperation with UNICEF. The National Mnors' Institute had found that there
were a nunber of girls whose behaviour, while not qualifying as prostitution,
could be described as sexually prom scuous. It had tried to provide shelter
for those girls and was very cautious in providing information in order to
avoi d exposing themto risk and to protect them from persons who intended to
exploit themfor inproper financial gain.

66. Wth regard to juvenile justice, | NAME had never sought to find any young
person crimnally responsi ble and had al ways foll owed the correct |ega
procedures in dealing with juvenile offenders.

67. Any report of the ill-treatnment of a young person by an enpl oyee of an
of ficial shelter or hone, regardl ess of the enployee's position, was fully
i nvestigated and the appropriate crimnal |aw penalties were inposed.

68. Ms. 1ZQUI ERDO (Uruguay), referring to donestic violence, said that the
process of reconciliation involved professional psychol ogi cal counselling for
both the aggressor and the victim unless |egal action needed to be taken
Saf e houses for battered wonen had so far existed only in Montevideo.



CRC/ ¢/ SR. 327
page 12

69. Despite ongoing attenpts, the Governnent had not been very successful in
ensuring that children would not have to appear in court to give evidence.

70. M. BONASSO (Uruguay) said that the new Children's Code would contain
provisions to deal with the stignma attached to the nanming of children of
si ngl e not hers.

71. The CGovernnent of Uruguay had a clear preference for national adoptions
and had not yet ratified the Convention on Protection of Children and
Cooperation in respect of Intercountry Adoption. 1In the past 13 nonths, an
aut hori zati on had been granted for only one child to be adopted
internationally. |In that particular case, it had been decided that the child,
who was blind, would have better prospects for developing his abilities in the
foreign country concerned. International adoptions were thus authorized with

due account being taken of the quality of the followup care avail abl e.

72. Wth regard to the rel ationship between children in detention and poor
soci al circunstances, INAVE firmy believed that it was better to treat
juveniles within their famlies, through social and econom c assistance, than
to place themin institutions. It was recognized that there were weaknesses
in followup action for the evaluation of the conditions under which children
lived in foster hones.

73. There was a clear trend for pregnant wonmen to seek private health care,
al t hough public health care was free and available to all

74. The Nati onal Food Suppl enent Progranme was offered to all needy pregnant
worren and to all children under six years of age as a preventative mneasure.
The Mnistry of Public Health al so conducted a feeding programme to deal with
identified cases of nutritional deficiency.

75. The CHAI RPERSON i nvited the nmenbers of the Committee to ask questions on
the section of the list of issues entitled "Special protection nmeasures"

76. M ss MASON asked whet her child workers benefited fromthe work of the
Labour Inspectorate. Did the Inspectors ensure that they were fairly paid and
had access to health services when they were ill? She al so asked whet her the
Covernnment had consi dered taki ng econom ¢ neasures, such as the institution of
a system of small business |oans, to generate enploynent for famlies who
woul d ot herwi se be obliged to send their children out to work. Had any rea
survey been nmade of working children, especially in the informal sector, wth
a viewto establishing reliable statistics?

77. Ms. KARP asked what three main areas should, in the delegation's view,
be the focus of attention in ternms of research, manpower and budgetary
allocations in order to ensure the fuller inplenentation of the Convention

78. M. BONASSO (Uruguay) said that the Labour |nspectorate was responsible
for checking the age of young workers, ensuring that they were not enployed in
ni ght work or on tasks too heavy for them and so forth. Certainly, the

enpl oynment of children was not regarded as a renedy for the econonic



CRC/ C/ SR 327
page 13

situation. Two programres directed at the popul ati on between 15 and 24 years
of age which had been forced to drop out of school had been put into effect
with the assistance of the Inter-American Devel opnent Bank

79. In reply to Ms. Karp's question, he would say that the whole thrust of
the Governnent's action was preventive. Hence its eagerness to strengthen
famly ties and provide nore assistance to families. The paranount inportance
of education was fully recogni zed, as shown by the efforts being nade to
extend preschool education nationwi de and ensure that it was accessible to
poorer famlies, as well as to provide opportunities so that di sadvantaged
children forced to drop out of school could resunme their education. The new
Governnent was continuing the start already nmade on enhanci ng teacher training
and engaging in an overall revision of the education system as recomrended in
the studies carried out by ECLAR

80. The revised Children's Code that woul d soon be adopted would be fully in
line with the spirit of the Convention. The Government was also comitted to
pronmoting the participation of NGOs. Efforts would be directed at preventing
t he abandonment of children and their institutionalization, counteracting
ill-treatnment and abuse of all Kkinds, strengthening progranmres for the
prevention of teenage pregnancy, while at the sane tine ensuring care for
young unnarried nothers and pressing forward with efforts to prevent and
renmedy child prostitution

81. The CHAI RPERSON invited the nenbers of the Cormittee to make their
concl udi ng observations on the initial report of Uruguay.

82. Ms. SANTOS PAI S thanked the Uruguayan del egation for its frank and open
approach to the discussion of the report. The country's problens had been
recogni zed and willingness expressed to take the Committee's suggestions for

i mprovenent into account.

83. Despite those positive trends, however, sone aspects continued to be of
concern to the Conmmittee. First, priority nmust be given to the adoption of
the new Code for Children and Adol escents. That process should coincide with
the reformof all legislation contrary to the spirit of the Convention and the
adoption of new laws in those fields not yet covered, such as internationa
adoption and the recognition of torture as a crinme. Secondly, it was

i mportant that there should be effective coordination, both horizontally and
vertically, between all the CGovernnment departnents involved, as well as
interaction with the municipal authorities with a viewto strengthening their
power to nmeet the needs of families. Action on behalf of children should have
a greater claimon the country's resources, with priority being given to the
nost needy in order to avoid the perpetuation of poverty. More noney shoul d
be spent on education and health. A special effort should be made to identify
i ndi cators of hidden problens such as child abuse, child prostitution and the
illicit traffic in children

84. The Convention should play an inmportant part in information and training
programes. Stress should be laid on its provisions in the training of social
wor kers and teachers and public authorities and nenbers of Parlianment shoul d
al so be made aware of its provisions. The new Children's Code was currently
before the Parliament and she hoped that its nenbers would be informed of the



CRC/ ¢/ SR. 327
page 14

Committee's conclusions and be influenced by them Their support was al so

i mportant fromthe point of view of budgetary allocations. She hoped that
steps woul d be taken to include teaching about the Convention in schoo
curricula and that greater efforts would be nade to cooperate with NGOs, which
were often closer to the people than the Governnment coul d be.

85. The general principles of the Convention should be systematically
applied. The age of marriage shoul d be kept as high as possible. Enpl oynent
shoul d not be pernitted under the age of 15 and the age of crinina
responsibility should be raised to 18. The concept of illegitinmacy should be
abandoned and any stigma renoved. Special nmeasures were needed to support
famlies in order to prevent the abandonment of children and their consequent
institutionalization. Special neasures were al so needed to ensure that the
rights of children in detention were respected and, in the field of justice in
general, it was inportant that new | egi slation should reflect the provisions
of articles 37 and 40 of the Convention in particular.

86. M. HAMVARBERG sai d that he would |ike the Governnent to consider making
a general review of Uruguayan | egislation and practice in the |ight of the
provisions of article 3 of the Convention whereby the best interests of the
child should be a primary consideration. The inpact on children should be
taken into account at all stages of the decision-maki ng process. Doing so
woul d automatically give children a nore inportant place in society.

That shoul d be acconpani ed by a further discussion of the best neans of
guar ant eei ng the i ndependent nonitoring of the systemthrough the appointnent
of an onbudsnman or in some other way. There should be nore systenmatic

trai ning and education of key professionals in the field of children's rights
and there was also a need for a nore targeted investigation of services in
certain areas, to serve as the basis for a nore in-depth di scussion.

87. Ms. SARDENBERG said that the dialogue with the Uruguayan del egati on had
clarified and suppl enented the report and the other docunments subnitted.

Anong the positive points that had enmerged were the satisfactory indicators
regardi ng health and educati on and the nonent of opportunity for reform

af forded by the inauguration of the new CGovernnent.

88. As a general reconmendation, she stressed the need for a change of
attitude towards the way in which children were perceived, taking as its basis
the ethical and | egal content of the Convention. Children and adol escents
needed to have their own place in the country's political agenda so that their
primary interests could be reflected in policies and strategies, as well as in
budgetary allocations and in the inprovenent of their real situation in the
country. She al so emphasi zed the need for a reliable diagnosis of problens
based on systematic and structured studies and statistics and for a better
system of information. Regarding the new Children's Code, there was a need
not only to speed up the debate, but also to ensure that it was open to the
various sectors of society, including NGCs.

89. One of her chief concerns was the unequal access to services and
opportunities of such vul nerable groups as poor children, black children,
street children, the disabled, child workers and victins of ill-treatnent.

She stressed the inportance of participation by children, who should be
encouraged to formassociations so as to take part and cooperate in



CRC/ C/ SR 327
page 15

fornmul ating policies and di scussing topics inportant to them She again
conmended t he Uruguayan del egation on its positive attitude and expressed the
hope that its nmenbers would return to their country with a strengthened
determ nation to foster the inplenentation of the Convention

90. Ms. BADRAN thanked the Uruguayan del egation and said that she | ooked
forward to seeing a nunber of the Committee's reconmendati ons put into effect.
Al t hough current indicators showed that the situation in Wuguay was

sati sfactory in some respects, an effort would be needed to sustain it, since
the econonic difficulties caused by structural adjustnment and the recession
could well have a negative influence. Two problens in particular needed
special study: first, why were the young and educated em grating from
Uruguay - sonething that could have very serious denographi c consequences
given the country's small child population - and, secondly, why was the
institution of the famly disintegrating? A systemof incentives was needed
to halt the emgration of young peopl e and encourage themto marry and found
legitimate families of their owm. There should also be incentives to stay at
school. One way of encouragi ng young people to stay in the country was to
open up opportunities for themto participate in the various conmunity
structures. That would give thema sense of belonging and would help with
popul ar participation in general, since, unless a start was nade early by
training children to participate, it was difficult to persuade themto do so
at a |l ater stage.

91. M. MOVBESHORA regretted that shortage of tine had prevented the
Uruguayan del egation fromreplying to his question about famly planning.
Nevert hel ess, the information provided about early and unwanted pregnancies
showed that there was a major problemin that regard. Fanmily planning could
be a useful strategy for inproving the health of nothers and children and a
val uabl e tool for reducing the adverse social and psychol ogi cal effects of
unwant ed pregnancies. He was sure that, when the nenbers of the del egation
returned to Uruguay, they would ook into that area with a viewto fitting
famly planning into health progranmes.

92. Ms. KARP said that Uruguay had to formul ate policies for renoving
disparities and to change attitudes towards participation by children. The
principles of the Convention should be inplenented in a holistic way, with the
best interests of the child and his right to devel opnent seen as a single

subj ect having different aspects. There was also a need to strengthen
services for victinms of violence and abuse, particularly to help ensure that

they were rehabilitated rather than doubly victim zed.

93. Ms. EUFEM O said that one particul ar aspect of the research that had
been recomended, nanely, the identification of attitudinal biases and
negative aspects of culture and tradition that could inpede the pronotion of
the rights of the child, should be used as a basis for experinmenting with
strategi es and devel opi ng new programmes that woul d pronote the preventive
approach referred to by the Uruguayan del egati on. She al so suggested that the
pl an of action should be updated to include not only health, education, socia
security and assistance to children in difficult circunstances, but also the
pronotion of civil rights and freedomof children to participate. Since funds
were necessarily linmted, certain popul ations should be specifically targeted
and the precise nunber to be benefited should be part of the plan



CRC/ C/ SR 327
page 16

94, The CHAI RPERSON sai d she was sure that the Uruguayan del egation realized
that the purpose of the Committee's observations, suggestions and
recomendati ons was to help the Governnment inprove its action on behal f of
children in accordance with the provisions of the Convention

95. M. BONASSO (Uruguay) assured the Conmittee that everything that had been
said would be reflected upon and shared with the different sectors involved in
the care and education of children. He thanked the Conmittee for its
under st andi ng and hel pful approach

96. Ms. RIVERO (Uruguay) thanked the Conmittee for its careful and

know edgeabl e consi derati on of the Uruguayan report. She was particularly
grateful to the Centre for Human Rights for its willing and efficient
cooperation with her del egation

The neeting rose at 1.10 p.m




